
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
8 March 2022 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL to be held on Wednesday 16 March 2022  at 7.30 pm in the Council 
Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Governance Services Manager 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the special meeting held on 22 
February 2022 (previously circulated). 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence, if any. 
 

3.   PETITIONS  
 

 The Mayor will receive petitions (limited to the first three petitions presented). 
 

4.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

 A period of thirty minutes will be made available for questions to be put by 
Members of the public to Members of the Cabinet on matters for which the 
Council has a responsibility or which affect the Borough. 
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items 
on the Agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader of the Council, Member 
of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

7.   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

 For a period of up to thirty minutes, a Member of the Council who has given prior 
notice in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15, may ask (a) the Mayor, (b) 
the Leader of the Council or (c) a Member of the Cabinet a question on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the 
Borough. 
 

The questions received for this meeting are attached.  A Member asking a 
question may ask, without giving notice, one supplementary question of the 
Member to whom the first question was asked.  The supplementary question 
must arise directly out of the reply. 
 

8.   MATTERS ARISING FROM THE CABINET  
 

 To consider a recommendation from the meeting of the Cabinet on 1 March 
2022:- 
 

(a)    Procurement Boards (Pages 9 - 28) 
 

 To consider a recommendation from Cabinet to disband the General 
Procurement Board and make subsequent amendments to the constitution 
and Contract Procedure Rules. 
 

9.   NOTICES OF MOTIONS (Pages 29 - 32) 
 

 To consider notices of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16 in such order 
as the Mayor shall direct.  The motions received for this meeting are attached. 
 

10.   INDEPENDENT PERSONS' ALLOWANCE (Pages 33 - 36) 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive on the proposals to introduce new annual 
allowances for Independent Persons and members of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel (IRP). 
 

11.   URGENT MATTERS  
 

 To consider any matters of urgency subject to the agreement of the Mayor in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 5.1(s). 
 

 
Circulation: The Mayor and Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


 

Part I 
Item No: 7 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 16 MARCH 2022 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 15 QUESTIONS – QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS  
 

Notice of the following questions has been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule No 15:- 

1. Question to the Leader from Councillor Gail Ganney 
 

“The Council commissioned an independent review into how the Council’s Housing 
compliance issues arose.  

That report was published in February and identified the root causes contributing 
to non-compliance.  

Can the Leader kindly outline what actions are now being taken to firstly, 
addressing the findings in the report and secondly, to prevent this or similar 
situations from happening again?” 

2. Question to the Leader from Councillor Jane Quinton 
 

“With the continuing lack of an EV charging strategy from National Government it 
is incumbent on local councils to make the best choices when installing public 
charging points.  

Given that research published by CENEX in Jan 2018 for the Committee on 
Climate Change states that:  

a) Of the fast and standard [EV] chargers required 55% of chargers need to 
be fast (22kW) and 16% standard (7kW), to enable drivers stopping for 
varying amounts of time to top up  

b) a 5-fold increase in fast chargers is needed compared to a 2-fold increase 
in standard chargers. 

c) The number of public chargers needed for ‘top-up charging’ during parking-
based charging around towns and local areas needs to rise from 2,700 in 
2016 to over 27,000 by 2030 

Yet the council are continuing to install EV charging points at only standard (7KW) 
charging rates instead of fast (22Kw). 

I have been assured that at least some of the recently installed points can be 
upgraded to 22Kw or at least 22Kw per post (2 cars) so why is this not being done?  

Are plans being made with UKPN (UK power networks) to supply the majority of 
future charging points at fast (22KW) rates?” 

3. Question to the Executive Member (Resources) from Councillor Paul Smith 
 

“I noted at a recent Budget Task and Finish Panel, the hugely positive financial 
impact that the crematorium being constructed in Hatfield will have for our 
Borough.  Could the cabinet member for resources please update members on the 
progress of this project, and perhaps set out the key benefits to our community that 
this will deliver once completed?” 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



 

4. Question to the Leader from Councillor Stan Tunstall 
 

“Could the leader tell us about the HAPpy program and our borough's 
involvement?” 

5. Question to the Leader from Councillor Glyn Hayes 
 

“Since my accident my eyes have been opened to all manner of areas Welwyn 
Hatfield Council fails to consider the needs of disabled people.  

Skips placed in disabled parking areas in Council car parks, a lack of disabled 
friendly electric charge points, and to my frustration but certainly not my surprise - 
the removal of ALL disabled parking at the Highview shopping area while the 
building works are taking place. 

Does the Leader agree with me that Welwyn Hatfield Council is failing in its duty 
to consider Disabled people in Welwyn Hatfield?” 

6. Question to the Leader from Councillor Frank Marsh 
 

“In September 2021, Cllr Ayesha Rohale asked the following question that is still 
effectively unanswered. I ask the council to now respond appropriately and answer 
the question as stated, namely “Would the leader of the council explain the role 
Mears had in ensuring electrical safety testing for council owned properties and if 
this took place over the life of the contract that has recently been terminated?” 

 
7. Question to the Leader from Councillor Russ Platt 
 

“Since becoming a councillor, I have noticed that Council response levels and 
times to my enquiries vary wildly from department to department, and indeed 
person to person. Some respond quickly, and with relevant information, and this is 
great as it enables me to get back to my resident with an update and manage their 
expectations.  

Sadly though, this is not the norm and, in many cases, councillors get no response 
until it has been chased once, twice or sometimes three or more times. Councillors 
do not expect an immediate answer or resolution to enquiries, we know that is not 
possible or realistic in most cases.  What I think we should expect though is an 
acknowledgement that the issue has been received, details of the next steps to be 
taken or who is dealing with it, and a date that we will be updated. 

To be clear, this is not about getting issues resolved at the initial stage, it is about 
acknowledgement and communication, so that the residents that we represent can 
be kept informed.  It is also not a case that councillors are more important than the 
public, but commonly, we are asked to intervene either on behalf of residents or 
when residents have not been able to get a resolution from the council themselves. 

Delays and/or inefficiency reflect badly on the council and on councillors, and more 
importantly can mean that maintenance or safety work can be delayed. In light of 
the recent housing maintenance failures, there is a need for this to be addressed 
as part of the council's commitment to keeping the momentum going. 

So, my question is as follows. Will the council agree to implement a 'service level 
agreement' for responding to councillor's queries, an SLA that ensures that within 
24 hours councillors are aware of what the next stage of the enquiry will be, who 
will be dealing with it and when the next update will be given?” 

Page 4



 

8. Question to the Leader from Councillor Lucy Musk 
 

“In view of the recently published report by this Council into its regulatory failings 
on housing safety, does he agree with me that it is disgraceful that we currently 
have residents and young children living in homes affected by black mould, 
crumbling plaster work, and general conditions that would not be tolerated in the 
private sector?” 

9. Question to the Leader from Councillor Paul Zukowskyj 
 

“On Monday 1st March, cabinet ‘noted’ the management response to the 
Eversheds report, by implication therefore condoning it. That management 
response was not seen prior to publication by most councillors, nor was it 
presented to CHP, leading to a failure of appropriate governance. The response 
has clear and demonstrable failures to actually address the fundamental problem, 
namely a failure to deliver an appropriate health and safety minded culture across 
the council. 

Will the leader join me in rejecting the management response as both inadequate 
and potentially dangerous?” 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

Part I 
Item No:  
For Decision 

 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 16 MARCH 2022 
 
Recommendation from Cabinet on 1 March 2022:- 
 
94.1. PROCUREMENT BOARDS (FORWARD PLAN REFERENCE FP1099)  

Report of the Head of Law and Administration on a review of the Procurement 
Boards. 

 
(1) The Decision Taken 

 
RESOLVED: 
(unanimous) 
 
(1) In view of the fact that Executive Members were now able to 

exercise delegated decisions through Executive Member Decision 
Notices, Cabinet agreed that the General Procurement Board can 
be disbanded for the reasons set out in the report. Following 
Council approval of necessary changes to the Constitution, the 
approval process for procurements will be undertaken in 
accordance with the table in section 3.12 of the report. 

 
(2) Cabinet recommended to Council that the Constitution is amended 

to reflect any approved consequential changes in the report, 
including Executive Member and Officer delegations. 

 
(3) Cabinet also recommended to Council that the Contract 

Procedures Rules are amended to reflect the approved changes, 
as outlined in the report. 

 
(2) Reasons for the Decision 
 

The change would require amendments to both the Council’s 
Constitution and Contract Procedure Rules. 
 
The General Procurement Board was established in 2018 with a view 
to involving members in the procurement process. 
 
In practice, and in the light of experience, the existence of the board 
had added delay and inefficiency to the process. 
 
Members had in reality been able to provide little effective input to a 
process that is highly formulaic.  Discussions had almost invariably 
been about issues unrelated to procurement. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8a



 
 
 

The fact that the General Procurement Board recommended to Cabinet 
has then created Cabinet agenda items.  Furthermore, the timescales 
involved meant that the related pre-Cabinet agenda items had 
frequently been discussed before the General Procurement Board had 
made a recommendation, adding confusion.   
 
As noted in the report, little member involvement in procurement 
existed in other Hertfordshire authorities. 
 
Cross-party member involvement in major projects would be 
maintained, where it is considered appropriate, and can add value.  But 
this will be with a view to involving members in the project as a whole, 
not just the procurement aspects. 
 
The recommended changes should be seen as part of the Council’s 
modernisation process.  The proposed revised approval process was 
set out in Table 3.12 of the report. 

 

 

 

The reports of the Cabinet meeting can be viewed in full here: 
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=1344&Ver=4  

Page 8

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=1344&Ver=4


1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

[DATE OF APPROVAL] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

Page 9



2 | P a g e  
 

Contents 
1. Definitions ................................................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Introduction ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

3. Basic principles ......................................................................................................................................... 4 

4. Scope of the Contract Procedure Rules ................................................................................................... 4 

5. Conflicts of Interest .................................................................................................................................. 5 

6. Pre Commencement Requirements......................................................................................................... 5 

7. Pre- tender Market Research and Engagement. ..................................................................................... 6 

8. Pre Procurement ...................................................................................................................................... 6 

9. Choice of Procedure ................................................................................................................................. 6 

10.    Collaborative Procurement ..................................................................................................................... 7 

11.    Specifications ........................................................................................................................................... 7 

12.    Electronic Procurement and Advertising ................................................................................................ 8 

13.    Management of the Procurement Process ............................................................................................. 8 

14.    Estimating the value of the Procurement ............................................................................................... 8 

15.    Process to be followed ............................................................................................................................ 9 

16.    Evaluation Criteria ................................................................................................................................. 10 

17.    Off Payroll Working and Intermediaries Legislation (IR35) ................................................................... 10 

18.    Form of Contract and Security .............................................................................................................. 10 

19.    Submission of Tenders .......................................................................................................................... 11 

20.    Tender clarification ............................................................................................................................... 11 

21.    Evaluation of Tenders ............................................................................................................................ 11 

22     Authority to award contract .................................................................................................................. 12 

23     Letting of Contracts ............................................................................................................................... 12 

24.    Notification to bidders .......................................................................................................................... 14 

25.    Variation to Contract ............................................................................................................................. 14 

26     Extension of Contract ............................................................................................................................ 15 

27     Assignment and Novation of Contracts ................................................................................................. 15 

28.    Nominated Sub Contractors and Suppliers ........................................................................................... 15 

29.    Outside Consultants .............................................................................................................................. 16 

30.    Bribery and Fraud .................................................................................................................................. 16 

31.    Alternative Procedures in Prescribed Circumstances ........................................................................... 17 

 

 

Page 10



3 | P a g e  
 

1. Definitions 
Council shall mean Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council  

Conflict of Interest shall mean a situation in which a person is in a position to derive personal 

benefit from actions or decisions made in their official capacity. 

Contracting Authority means the State, regional or local authorities, bodies governed by public law  

Contractor means an organisation undertaking work on behalf of the Council following a 

procurement competition. 

Contracts Finder is the electronic portal that lets you search for information about contracts with 

the government and its agencies 

E Tendering Portal means the Supply Hertfordshire procurement portal operated by In Tend 

Limited  

Find a Tender Threshold means the financial Threshold where a notice must be published on the 

governments Find a Tender website 

GDPR means the General Data Protection Regulations in force at the relevant time 

JCT Contract means The Joint Contracts Tribunal, an organisation that, produces standard forms 

of contract for construction. 

Open Procedure means a one stage tender process where one submission is made. As well as 

price and quality criteria there maybe criteria that is used in the selection stage (such as minimum 

financial requirements) 

Parent Company Guarantee is a form of security that is obtained from a parent (or holding) 

company to protect a client in the event of default on a contract by the Contractor. 

PCR2015 means the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 

Performance Bond is a surety bond issued by an insurance company or a bank to guarantee 

satisfactory completion of a project by a contractor.  

Procurement Manager shall mean the Procurement Manager of the Council 

Restricted Procedure means a two -stage process. The first stage is the selection stage. This 

considers the capability of tenders to undertake the services and is backward looking. From the 

selection stage a minimum of five bidders are taken through to the tender stage where they are 

scores against a mix of price and quality.   

Social Values means taking account of the wider economic, social and environmental effects. 

Threshold above the financial threshold when a regulated procurement is required and referred 

to in Regulation 5 of PCR2015 

 

2. Introduction 

2.1 Section 135 of the Local Government Act 1972 (the 1972 Act) requires the Council to have 
standing orders for how it enters into contracts. These Contract Procedure Rules (“Rules”) 

Page 11



4 | P a g e  
 

are the standing orders required by the 1972 Act. They form part of the Council's 
Constitution and are, in effect, the instructions of the Council, to officers and elected 
members, for entering into contracts on behalf of the Council. 

2.2 These Rules govern ALL purchases of works, goods and services across the whole Council; 
they cover UK legislative requirements as well as good practice. Should there be any 
discrepancies between these Rules and legislation, legislation is the dominant authority 
and MUST be followed.  

2.3 All Council procurements MUST demonstrate; true and fair competition, public 
accountability, an open, fair and transparent process, seek to prevent bribery and 
corruption, whilst ensuring probity.   All procurements MUST demonstrate a full audit trail. 

2.4 Complying with the Contract Procedure Rules will also help to ensure that the Council 
obtains best value when it buys works, goods or services. 

2.5 These Contract Procedure Rules are to protect the interests of the Council, its officers and 
elected Members and the public. 

 

3. Basic principles 
The procurement of supplies, services and works of any value must always: 

 

3.1 Provide value for money; 

3.2 Be undertaken in a fair, transparent, equal and non-discriminatory manner;  

3.3 Not involve fraud or corruption; 

3.4. Adhere to ethical and sustainable procurement principles;  

3.5 Receive the appropriate approval to commence and award a contract;  

3.6. Have a signed / sealed contract in place (over the requisite value)  

3.7 Have appropriate contract management performance measures in the contract;  

3.8. Ensure the delivery of any Social Value requirements. 

 
 

4. Scope of the Contract Procedure Rules 
4.1 These rules apply to all procurements for the provision of supplies, services or 

works, except where stated in 4.3. 

 
4.2 A contract is any verbal or written agreement where a party (the Supplier) agrees to 

provide supplies, services or works to the Council in return for a form of consideration 

(usually payment).These contracts include but are not limited to: 

 

4.2.1 Service Contracts 

4.2.2 Construction Contracts 

4.2.3 Supplies Contracts (purchase of goods) 

4.2.4 Framework agreements 

4.2.5 Purchase orders 

4.2.6 Leasing / licensing / Financing arrangements (e.g. software) 

4.2.7 Quotations 

4.2.8 Concession contracts  

 

 
4.3  The following contracts are exempt from these regulations:  

Page 12



5 | P a g e  
 

4.3.1 Employment Contracts 

4.3.2 Contracts for the acquisition, transfer, or disposal of any 

interest in land or property (including leasehold interest) 

4.3.3 Instruction of  legal counsel/barristers - Where it is in the best interests of the 

Council to directly instruct a particular legal counsel/barrister because they are 

one of only a few suppliers  who  have expertise or specialist knowledge or 

substantial experience or skills in a relevant area. 

4.3.4 For loans arrangements 

4.3.5 For the open market purchase of housing   

 

5. Conflicts of Interest  

5.1 All members of staff must avoid any conflict between their own interests and the   
interests of the Council as detailed in the Council's Officers’ Code of Conduct, this 
includes: but is not limited to 
5.1.1 not accepting gifts or hospitality from organisations or suppliers that the 

Council has dealings with 
5.1.2 not working for, or having a pecuniary shareholding in organisations or 

suppliers that the Council has dealings with; 
5.1.3 notifying the Procurement Manager if an officer has links with (e.g. they 

previously worked for, or a family member or close friend works for) an 
organisation or supplier who is tendering or quoting for a contract with the 
Council or already has a contract with the Council. 

5.2 All consultants engaged to act on behalf of the Council must declare that: 
5.2.1 they will avoid any conflict between their own interests or those of any of their 

other clients and the interests of the Council; and 
5.2.2 they will notify the Procurement Manager if they have any links with (e.g. a 

family member or close friend works for) an organisation or supplier who is 
tendering or quoting for a contract with the Council or already has a contract 
with the Council, subject to that Consultant being involved in that particular 
project. 

5.3 For any project over £1,000,000.00 in value all officers must sign a project specific conflict 
of interest form and return this to the Procurement Manager 

 
 
 

6. Pre- Commencement Requirements.  
6.1 Before any procurement commences, the following approvals are required to commence 

the procurement and to agree the evaluation criteria: 

 

 Up to £10,000.00 : No specific approval required to commence 

 Over £10,000 and less than £100,000 – the Head of Service’s approval is required 

 Over £100,000.00 and less than £999,999: The Director / Chief Executive’s approval is 

requirement  

 Over £1,000,000.00. The Executive Member by means of and Executive Member 

Decision Notice.  

Page 13



6 | P a g e  
 

 

 

7.  Pre- tender Market Research and Engagement.  
7.1 Officers may consult potential tenderers prior to the placing of the contract advert in 

general terms about the nature, level and standard of the requirement and other 

relevant matters, provided this does not prejudice any potential tenderer or tender; 

7.1.1 Must not seek or accept technical advice on the preparation of an Invitation 

to Tender or Quotation from anyone who may have a commercial interest in 

it, this may prejudice the equal treatment of all potential tenderers or distort 

competition; 

7.1.2 Must notarise the meeting/ event, share the information presented as 

and when requested, unless the information is commercially sensitive. 

 

8. Pre- Procurement 
8.1 Prior to the publication of any procurement the Officer must: 

8.1.1 Make a genuine estimate of the whole life cost of the supplies, services or 

works being supplied during the entire term (including any extension period) 

of the contract. [see paragraph 14 below] 

8.1.2 Contracts must not be artificially divided into two or more contracts to 

avoid Procurement Regulations or the Council’s Contract Procedure 

Rules; 

8.1.2 Consult with Finance prior to commencing a procurement to ensure that 

budget for the total estimated value identified above will be available for the 

contract; 

 

9. Choice of Procedure 
9.1 The route to market for all tenders must be determined in conjunction with 

the Procurement Manager and consider the following elements: 

 9.1.1. Whether there are collaboration, Shared Services or inter-authority   

opportunities;  

 9.1.2. Stimulation of local Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SME) supplier market. 

 9.1.3. Whole life costs and affordability of the contract; 

 9.1.4. The size of the market; 

          9.1.5. The complexity of the requirements;  

9.1.6. The value of the contract. 

 
 

9.2 The decision to utilise frameworks as a route to market must be approved 

by the Procurement Manager prior to engagement with the framework 

provider. Further information can be found in section 10.4 and 10.5. 

 

Page 14



7 | P a g e  
 

10. Collaborative Procurement 
10.1 Each collaborative procurement will have a lead or Contracting Authority. This is the       

body that will be responsible for letting and awarding the contract. The procurement 
process will usually be undertaken in accordance with that body’s contracting 
regulations. 
 

10.2 Each participating Council’s role and responsibilities in any collaborative procurement 

must be clearly outlined and understood at the beginning of the procurement. 

 
10.3 Where Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council will be the Contracting Authority for the    

procurement: 

10.3.1 Authorisation to commence the procurement process must be 

obtained and undertaken in accordance with these rules; 

10.3.2 A Service Level Agreement must be entered into with all other 

participants, outlining the rules and responsibilities of both parties and 

ensuring any risk that Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is taking is passed 

through to the other participants; 

10.3.3 The Procurement Manager must lead the procurement element of the 

project; 

10.3.4 The procurement timetable should allow for the participating authorities to 

obtain the necessary approvals in accordance with their constitution(s); 

10.3.5 Authorisation to award the contract must be obtained in accordance with 

these rules. 

 

10.4 Officers are also permitted to use a framework contract that has been tendered by 

central purchasing body as long as there is provision in the contract notice for this council 

to call off from the framework.  

10.5 Where a framework contract (mentioned in 10.4) is being used the preferred method 

should be a mini competition. A direct award should only be made after consultation 

with the Procurement Manager.  

 

 

11. Specifications 
11.1 Specifications must set out a clear and comprehensive description of the Council’s 

requirements with regard to the supplies, services or works to be procured. The 

specification should include the defined outputs/ outcomes expected. 

 
11.2 All supplies, services or works must be specified by reference to European standards 

or national standards, if no European standards are set. 

 
11.3 Named products or manufacturers must not be specified for above Threshold 

procurements.  

 

11.4 Specifications must contain measurable objectives to enable the Council to ascertain   

whether requirements are being met. This should include Key Performance Indicators 

Page 15



8 | P a g e  
 

for measurable purposes. 

 
11.5 Specifications must incorporate the relevant requirements in respect of: 

11.5.1 Professional or Industry accreditations to be held by the service providers; 
11.5.2 Consultation with service users 
11.5.3 Reporting to the Council on key service metrics/ Key Performance Indicators 
11.5.4 Equalities analysis 
11.5.5 GDPR (Responsibility for the management, safeguarding and ownership of 

any data to be used) 

 
11.6 Due regard for the Councils Climate Change strategy should be made. 

 
 

12. Electronic Procurement and Advertising  
12.1 Procurement at or above £10,000.00 should be undertaken through the Council’s 

E- Tendering portal. 

12.2 Procurement at or above £50,000.00 must be advertised on an ‘open basis’ (i.e. 

not limited to a certain number of bidders). These opportunities must be 

published on the E- Tendering portal as well as Contracts Finder. 

12.3 Procurement at or above the threshold in Regulation 5 of PCR2015 must be 

advertised on the Find a Tender portal as well as the E- tendering portal and 

Contracts Finder. All documents relating to an above Find a Tender threshold 

procurement must be made available at the first point of publication of the 

contract notice. 

 

13. Management of the Procurement Process 
13.1 All procurements with a value of  £10,000 will be managed by the procurement 

department. 

 

 

          14. Estimating the value of the Procurement  
14.1 When calculating the value of the procurement the following process should be used: 

14.2 For Capital projects (without maintenance) it should be the Capital Budget approved for the 

purchase. 

14.3 For Capital projects that include a contractual requirement for maintenance, it should be 

the cost of the capital budget plus the maintenance costs for the duration of the 

maintenance agreement (e.g. a capital purchase of £45,000, which includes a maintenance 

contract for 5 years estimated at £5,000 per annum has a total estimated value of £70,000)  

14.4 For revenue contracts the estimated value should be for either: 

(a)  The estimated value of a one- off purchase; or 

Page 16



9 | P a g e  
 

(b) For recurring requirements with that supplier, the estimated shall be either the 

value for the proposed contract length or if it is not known how long the 

arrangement will be in place then the estimated value should be 4 times the annual 

expected expenditure.  

  14.5  The estimated value must exclude Value Added Tax (VAT) but must include all other taxes 

and duties. 

  14.6 Where a Contractor is commissioned to undertake more than one order/contract for a 

specific department in any one financial year period, then the total amount spent with that 

supplier should not exceed £10,000 without conducting a competitive process in 

accordance with these Rules.  

        14.7 It is acknowledged that more than one department may utilise the same supplier, without 

knowledge of the expenditure of the other department. The procurement department will 

regularly assess the expenditure and should the expenditure on any one supplier exceed 

£10,000 (in a financial year), then those departments should conduct a joint procurement 

in accordance with these rules.  

        14.8 Investigatory phases- services are often commissioned where projects are at the 

investigatory (initial) stage as to project viability, pilots or design etc. Quite often extra 

resources are required to further re-procure as the project progresses. Consideration 

should be given at the investigatory (initial) stage to whether it would deliver better value 

to seek competitive quotes from the outset of the intended project, for each envisaged 

stage of the project. This may reduce the need for re-procuring as the project progresses 

and the risk of delaying the project timetable. 

       15. Process to be followed  
15.1 Dependant on the estimated value, the following table should be followed: 

 

Estimated Value Minimum No. of Quotations/Tenders 

Under £10,000 Obtain a minimum of one written quotation 

£10,000 - £49,999 3 quotations 

£50,000 – regulated Threshold (£189,330 as of 
1st January 2022) 

Advertised using the Open Procedure 

 Over the Threshold  for a regulated 
procurement  

Advertised using either the Open or Restricted 
Procedure (unless a more complex process such as 
Competitive Dialogue is used.)  

 

 

Page 17



10 | P a g e  
 

16. Evaluation Criteria  
16.1 All tenders must include evaluation criteria (generally the split between price and quality). 

This may include up to 95% price (subject to meeting all other minimum criteria). 

 

16.2 For any contract with a value above the Find a Tender Threshold at least 10% of the 

evaluation criteria is allocated to Social Values with an emphasis on using businesses 

based within the Borough.  

 

16.3 There must be a minimum of 5% of the evaluation criteria allocated to carbon reduction 

initiatives. 

 

    17. Off Payroll Working and Intermediaries Legislation (IR35)  
17.1 Since April 2017, the Council has had a legal obligation to ascertain if employment tax and 

national insurance should be deducted from payments to agency workers or contractors. 
17.2 Appointment through a recruitment agency: The Council has an obligation to inform the 

agency of the employment status of the individual, and the agency will then deduct tax 

and national insurance as appropriate. 

17.3   Under no circumstances should officers give agencies the view that an engagement is  
outside of the scope of the legislation, without receiving confirmation from the Head of 
Resources or Human Resources Manager. 

17.4  Award of Contract: If you plan to offer work to an individual who works through their  own 
intermediary (often their own company, but this could also be a partnership or another 
person), the Council has an obligation  to decide whether the off-payroll working rules 
apply. 

17.5  The Council will need to conduct an ‘employment status for tax’ assessment before the  
contract commences. The successful bidder will be required to provide all necessary 
information for this assessment to take place.  

17.6  In the event the Council concludes that off-payroll working rules for the public  sector  
apply, then the Council will deduct tax and national insurance from the Contractor at 
source and no additional payments will be made to the Contractor. 

  17.7 More detailed information on this subject can be obtained from the Procurement Manager, 

Head of Resources or Human Resources Manager.  

17.8 Under no circumstances should officers make payments to an intermediary without 

undertaking an employment status check. Should this determine the engagement is 

outside of scope, confirmation from the Head of Resources or Human Resources Manager 

must be received before proceeding to make payment. 

 

18. Form of Contract and Security 
18.1 Unless a recognised trade or profession contract is to be used (e.g. JCT) then the Council’s 

standard terms and conditions must be used.   Legal Services must approve any deviation 

from these terms and conditions.  Consideration should also be given to the use of 

Liquidated Damages (a fixed or ascertainable sum agreed by the parties as damages for a 

Page 18



11 | P a g e  
 

breach of contract).  If Liquidated Damages are not considered appropriate then the 

reason should be given on the contract file.  

  

18.2 All service or works (construction) contracts with a value of £1,000,000.00 or more should 

include in the tender document the requirement for the successful Contractor to provide 

a Performance Bond (of at least 10% of the contract value) or a Parent Company 

Guarantee. 

 

18.3 Performance Bonds / Parent Company Guarantees may also be requested where there is 

considered to be a particular risk to the Council (e.g. where the Contractor pays the 

Council), or where it is difficult for another company to run the service (where a Parent 

Company Guarantee should be obtained).  

 

19. Submission of Tenders 
19.1 All tenders must be submitted electronically through the E Procurement 

Portal. Tenders submitted in hard copy or by e mail will be rejected. 

 

19.2 Tenders must comply and be submitted in accordance with the rules and 

instructions set out in the Invitation to Tender. 

 

 

20. Tender clarification 
20.1 After tenders have been opened clarification may be necessary to check apparent 

omissions, arithmetical errors, completeness of documentation etc.  In seeking 
clarification all communications with tenderers should be properly recorded and must be 
issued through the E-Procurement System.  The objective at this stage is to evaluate the 
tenders as submitted and it follows therefore that under no circumstances should any 
tenderer be given the opportunity to engage in negotiations with regard to pricing or any 
other aspects of the tender.  Clarification should be obtained solely to the extent 
necessary for a clear evaluation.   
 

20.2 If a tenderer has obviously omitted a document (i.e. a document has been referred to but 
not supplied), then a request to supply it can only be made if the document would have 
clearly originated before the tender return date (e.g. a set of accounts, a dated policy 
document). 

20.3 Under no circumstances can a tenderer be allowed to submit a document that would not 
obviously be available before the tender return date and therefore give them an unfair 
advantage.   

 

 21.Evaluation of Tenders 
21.1 Training must be received by officers and others (including external consultants) 

involved in the evaluation process prior to any tender being returned. If training has 

not been received the officer / consultant will not be able to participate in the 

Page 19



12 | P a g e  
 

evaluation. 

21.2 Abnormally low bids must be investigated and only accepted where there is 

a clear explanation from the bidder to substantiate the pricing in accordance 

with Regulation 69 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. 

21.3 Conflicts of Interest must be declared in advance by those conducting the 

procurement and forming part of the evaluation panel and updated where a conflict 

arises once the bidders on a procurement are known.  

21.4 Ensure full written notes are made by evaluators and moderators to create an audit of 

the evaluation process. Notes must not be disposed of until 6 months after expiry of 

the contract. 

21.5    To ensure impartiality and in accordance with good procurement practice, the price and 
quality evaluation of any bid must be undertaken independently of each other. Any 
officer (or consultant working on behalf of the Council), must not have knowledge of any 
pricing information when undertaking the quality evaluation 

 

      22 Authority to award contract 
 22.1 All contracts must be awarded in accordance with the table below: 

 

Value of Contract Authorisation to award 
contract 

Documentation required to confirm 
authorisation 

Under £10,000 Service Manager  An e mail from the Service Manager 
confirming agreement to award 

£10,000 - £49,999 Head of Service An e mail from the Head of Service 
confirming agreement to award. 

£50,000 - £ 99,999 Corporate Director / Chief 
Executive 

Officer delegated decision notice  

 £100,000 - £1,000,000 Executive Member (by use of 
an Executive Member 
Decision Notice) 

Executive Member Decision Notice 

Over £1,000,000 Cabinet  Cabinet report and Cabinet Decision 
Notice 

 

23 Letting of Contracts 
23.1 For procurements less than £50,000 in value, then it is acceptable to issue a purchase 

order. The purchase order must include: 
 

(1) The name of the supplier 
(2) The requirements 
(3) The date the order needs to be completed by 
(4) The total value of the order with any payment terms 

Page 20



13 | P a g e  
 

(5) The purchase order number  
(6) A link to the Councils standard terms and conditions (unless different 

terms and conditions apply in which case the Purchase Order must 
specify:  (a) that the Council’s standard terms and conditions do not apply 
to the particular purchase; and (b) the terms and conditions which do 
apply to the particular purchase) 

 
23.2 Any procurement over £50,000 must be completed by a formal contract document 

(which is usually drafted by procurement and completed by the legal department)  and 
must contain:- 

 

 a description of the services, works or goods to be supplied; 
 

  price and payment terms; 
 

 commencement and completion dates including the provision of liquidated 
damages if appropriate 

 

 delivery date, if appropriate; 
 

 appropriate insurance generally including £10 million cover in respect of public 
liability, £500,000 cover for professional indemnity liability (where relevant) and 
employers liability insurance, if applicable, in accordance with the legal 
requirement. The relevant officer may decide to undertake a risk assessment of the 
project which may result in the level of insurance increasing or decreasing in 
accordance with the risks identified 

 
23.3 In addition, the following controls should be present:- 

 

 the contract between the Contractor and the Council must be in writing; 
 

 the contract must be signed by authorised signatory(ies) of the Contractor 
and the Council and be executed as a deed under seal if its value is  £100,000 
or over. 

 

 A contract which may be executed by signing only, in accordance with these 
Contract Procedure Rules, may be signed with wet and/or electronic 
signature(s) on behalf of the parties to the contract and, on behalf of the 
Council may be signed by the relevant Head of Service who shall notify the 
Legal Services Manager of the signing of the Contract and the Legal Services 
Manager shall ensure that details of the Contract are entered into the 
Signing Register. 

 

 In circumstances where a contract is being signed electronically by/on 
behalf of a Contractor, the Contractor shall, at the same time as providing 
the Council with the electronically signed contract, provide the Council with 
a separate statement (signed by the person(s) who has/have signed the 
contract) certifying that: 

 
o the person(s) signing the contract has/ve authority to do so; 

Page 21



14 | P a g e  
 

o  person(s) signing the contract intend/s to authenticate the 
contract; and  

o  and all formalities and legal requirements relating to execution of 
the contract are satisfied. 

 
23.4 Where a contract or other legal document is required to be executed as a deed the 

Contractor/other party(ies) may execute the contract electronically provided that the 
Contractor/other party(ies) shall each do so by signature of two (2) authorised 
signatories and shall provide to the Council, at the same time as providing the 
electronically executed deed to the Council, a separate statement certifying that: 

 

 the person(s) executing the contract on behalf of the Contractor/other party(ies) 
has/ve authority to do so; 

 the person(s) executing the contract on behalf of the Contractor/other party(ies) 
intend/s to authenticate the contract; and  

 any and all formalities and legal requirements relating to execution of the 
contract are satisfied. 

23.5 For all contracts over the Threshold a report in accordance with Regulation 84 of 
PCR2015 must be completed. 

 
 

24. Notification to bidders 
24.1 The successful Contractor should be notified promptly in writing, through the E-

Procurement Portal that they have been selected to carry out the contract.  It should be 
confirmed with the Contractor that they are available to commence the contract and 
that they will undertake the work to the terms and conditions of their tender. 

 
24.2 Unsuccessful contractors should be informed, in writing that they have not been 

selected to carry out the contract at the same time as the successful Contractor. 
 

24.3    In the event that the selected Contractor does not confirm that they are still available to 
carry out the work to the terms and conditions of the tender then the contract can be 
offered to the second best tenderer unless the Procurement is subject to the regulated 
part of the PCR2015 when the project must be re-advertised  

 
24.4    In the event of a potential contractor making a written request for information  regarding 

any  contract decision, the appropriate officer must provide a written response detailing 
the reasons for such decision within 15 days of the receipt of the potential contractor’s 
request (or within 3 days if the procurement is subject to the PCR2015). 

 

25. Variation to Contract 
25.1    Any variation to contract for a contract valued above the Threshold can only be varied if 

the variation is in accordance with Section 72 (Modification of Contracts during their 
term) of PCR2015 

 
25.2    The authority to accept a variation to contract is dependent upon the value of the change   

(calculated as the estimated value of the change for the remainder of the contract term): 
 

Page 22



15 | P a g e  
 

 Up to £49,999 – Head of Service  

 Between £50,000 and £99,999 –Director / Chief Executive 

  £100,000 up to £1,000,000 – Executive Member (by use of an Executive 
Member Decision Notice)  

 Over £1,000,000 – Cabinet  
 

25.3    The terms of the variation must be in writing and stored with the original contract. 
 

 

26 Extension of Contract 
26.1 An extension to a contract can only be made if there is provision within the existing 

contract. The decision to extend the contract is dependent upon the value of the 
extension and shall be agreed at the following level: 

 

 Up to £49,999 – Head of Service  

 Between £50,000 and £99,999 –Director / Chief Executive 

  £100,000 up to £1,000,000 – Executive Member (by use of an Executive 
Member Decision Notice)  

 Over £1,000,000 – Cabinet 
 

26.2 The terms of the extension must be in writing and stored with the original contract. 
 

27 Assignment and Novation of Contracts 
27.1 Assignment or Novation of a contract can only be made if there is provision in the 

contract to allow this to happen. Any Assignment or Novation must be agreed by the 
relevant Corporate Director or Chief Executive and checks should be made as to the 
status of the new contractual party to ensure it meets all the original selection criteria 
and is able to perform the contract. The assignment or novation shall not affect the 
performance of the contract in any way to the detriment of the Council. 

 
27.2 The terms of the assignment or novation must be in writing and stored with the original 

contract. 
 
27.3 If the remaining value of a contract which is to be assigned or novated is above the 

Threshold, the Procurement Manager must be consulted before authority is given to 
assign/novate the contract to a new Contractor. 

 

28. Nominated Sub Contractors and Suppliers  
28.1 Where a sub-contractor or supplier is to be nominated to a main contractor the 

appropriate officer must invite quotations or tenders in accordance with these Contract 
Procedure Rules (for the appointment of this subcontractor) and authorise the letting of 
the sub-contract between the sub-contractor or supplier and main Contractor. 

 
 28.2 The sub-contractor or supplier must send with their quote or tender an undertaking to 

work for the main contractor and to indemnify the main contractor for the sub-
contracted works or materials and provide a collateral warranty in the Council’s favour. 

 

Page 23



16 | P a g e  
 

29. Outside Consultants 
29.1 External consultants employed to supervise or to be otherwise involved with the 

operation of contracts must follow any provision of these Contract Procedural Rules 
which are relevant to their appointed duties.  Their contract for services must stipulate 
this requirement. 

 

         30.  Bribery and Fraud 
30.1 Services shall include fraud risks and mitigation measures on their operational risk 

register, where it is identified potential contractors are considered by the Council to be 
at high risk from benefit fraud, abuse or misuse in connection with the potential 
contractor’s business and/or its employees, sub-contractors or agents. Any high risks, or 
material changes in risk, shall be reported to the councils Section 151 Officer. 

 
30.2 The current statutory provisions on bribery and fraud are contained in the Bribery Act 

2010 (‘the Bribery Act’) and the Fraud Act 2006 (‘the Fraud Act’).  
 

30.3 The offences contained in the Bribery Act carry criminal penalties for individuals and 
organisations. For individuals, a maximum prison sentence of ten years and/or an 
unlimited fine can be imposed; for companies, an unlimited fine can be imposed.  

 
30.4 The Council, its employees and contractors/bidders are covered by both the Fraud Act 

and the Bribery Act. The council’s policies in relation to these acts can be found using 
the following links: 

 

 Fraud and Corruption: Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Strategy 
(welhat.gov.uk) 

 Bribery: Anti-Bribery Policy (welhat.gov.uk) 
 

30.5 All contracts over £50,000 in value must contain a relevant Anti-Bribery Clause. 
 

30.6 Officers should be alert to indicators of potential bribery in procurement which may 
include: 

 

 Unjustified and unexplained favourable treatment of a particular supplier from a 
particular contracting employee over a period of time, including number or amount 
of contracts awarded to a given firm or supplier 

 Unjustified high prices and important price increases 

 Low quality and late delivery acceptance by procurement official 

 Unusually high volume of purchases to a single source 

 Unusually high volume of purchases approved by a single purchaser 

 Unnecessary or inappropriate purchases 

 Recurrent and systematic rejection of firms who ultimately act as subcontractors 

 official accepting inappropriate gifts or entertainment 

 Close relationship (including social) between the official and the vendor 

 Unexplained sudden increase in wealth of the procurement official 

 Supplier has a reputation of paying bribes 

 Commercial contracts different from the supplier’s core business 

 Intermediary charges high commission, claims special influence on buyer 

 Unnecessary middleman involved in contacts or purchases 

Page 24

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/689/Anti-fraud-and-Corruption-Policy/pdf/Appendix_A-_Anti-fraud_and_Corruption_Policy_v1.0.pdf?m=637583440018500000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/689/Anti-fraud-and-Corruption-Policy/pdf/Appendix_A-_Anti-fraud_and_Corruption_Policy_v1.0.pdf?m=637583440018500000
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/media/14595/Anti-bribery-Policy/pdf/Appendix_B-_Anti-bribery_Policy_v1.0.pdf?m=637583444290330000


17 | P a g e  
 

 High risk sectors or countries 

 official has undisclosed outside business 

 Procurement official declining promotions to other non-procurement position 

 Procurement official acting beyond or below normal scope of duties in awarding or 
administering contracts 

 Long and unexplained delays between announcement of the winning bidder and 
the signing of the contact (this may be an indication of the negotiation of the bribe) 

 Frequent open or restrictive calls for tender that are inconclusive, ending in 

 negotiated procedures 

 
Any concerns should be discussed with the Procurement Manager, Monitoring Officer or Section 

151 Officer. 

 

31. Alternative Procedures in Prescribed Circumstances 
31.1It is acknowledged that the market place does not always allow the procedures which are 

set out in these Contract Procedure Rules to be followed.   
 

31.2 Contracts can also be entered into by an appropriate officer in the following circumstances 
(subject to compliance at all times with the PCR2015): 

 
(a) For the supply of goods or services where there is only one supplier and no acceptable 

alternative, following consultation with the Procurement Manager. 

(b)  Instruction of legal counsel/barristers - Where it is in the best interests of the Council to 
directly instruct a particular legal counsel/barrister because they are one of only a few 
suppliers  who  have expertise or specialist knowledge or substantial experience or skills in 
a relevant area.  

(c) Where there is an urgent Health and Safety requirement, subject to the prior approval of 
the Council’s Risk and Resilience Manager. 

(d) By the Chief Executive certifying that there is extreme urgency, after consulting the Leader 
of the Council and relevant Cabinet portfolio holder.  The reasons for extreme urgency must 
be recorded in writing and placed on the contract file 

(e) For loans arrangements. 

(f) Where the Cabinet agrees a report from a Corporate Director or Chief Executive detailing a 
case where it is to the advantage of the Council that these rules should be waived.  
 

(g) The Chief Executive also has the authority to enter into a contract up to £50,000 .00 without   
competition where they consider that this is in the best interests of the Council. 
 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Item No: 9 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 16 MARCH 2022 
 
NOTICE OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16 
 
To consider the following notice of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16:- 

 
1. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Tony Kingsbury and 

will be seconded by Councillor Paul Zukowskyj:- 

Welwyn Hatfield Council is appalled at the invasion of Ukraine by Russia and 
Belarus. Welwyn Hatfield stands together with our residents of Ukrainian heritage, 
who are understandably worried about their loved ones in the country.   

Noting that the waging of aggressive war is a criminal act under both international 
law and the Russian constitution, the Council joins with the civilised world in 
condemning the actions of President Putin in initiating the war which is taking an 
increasing toll of military personnel and non-combatant civilians alike.  

The Council fully backs the United Kingdom government in partnership with other 
NATO allies in deploying measures aimed at ending the illegal Russian invasion 
and supporting the Government and people of Ukraine in the defence of their 
country and the lives and liberties of their people.  

The Council stands ready to assist in all appropriate ways with humanitarian 
support and refuge to the people of Ukraine in this ordeal.  

Welwyn Hatfield Council is reminded that peace, stability and democracy cannot 
be taken for granted even in Europe and stresses the value and importance of 
international institutions including the United Nations and NATO in continuing to 
safeguard and advance democracy, mutual security and economic prosperity 
across Europe and beyond.  

The Council requests the Leader of the Council to write to Andrei Kelin, 
Ambassador of the Russian Federation in the UK, conveying the Council’s 
condemnation of the actions of his Government.   

2. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Glyn Hayes and will 
be seconded by Councillor Lynn Chesterman:- 

This council 

 Stands firmly behind our UK Armed Forces and fully supports the aims 
of the Armed Forces Covenant. 

 Welcomes the new Armed Forces Act but sees the legislation as a 
missed opportunity to further improve the lives of veterans in the Welwyn 
Hatfield area. 

 Notes with disappointment that the Act makes Welwyn Hatfield Council 
and local public bodies legally bound to have “due regard” to the 
Covenant when providing support to Forces communities, but exempts 
central government from any such duty, creating a two-tier Covenant for 
veterans. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



 

 Notes with further disappointment that the Labour led proposals backed 
by the Royal British Legion and ex-Service chiefs plans which were 
among others, to improve Armed Forces accommodation, employment 
support and ensuring central government has the same responsibility to 
deliver the Act that local authorities have, were voted down so not 
included in the Act. 

This Council resolves 

 To write to the Defence Secretary Ben Wallace asking him to reconsider 
the decision to not include in the Armed Forces Act, Widen the scope of 
the Bill to ensure it takes in all areas like service accommodation, 
employment, pensions, compensation, social care, criminal justice and 
immigration. Ensure central government has the same responsibility to 
deliver the Covenant that the Bill gives to local authorities and other local 
public bodies. Force the MOD to review its treatment of LGBT personnel 
pre-2000 and options for restoring ranks in full. 

 This Council will continue the campaign with the Hertfordshire Armed 
Forces Covenant board and Forces charities to see the Government 
continue to strengthen the Covenant and improve vital services to 
veterans. 

 
3. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Jane Quinton and 

will be seconded by Councillor Frank Marsh:- 

That Welwyn Hatfield Council: 

 Recognises: 

 that very large financial setup and running costs involved in selling 
locally generated renewable electricity to local customers result in it 
being impossible for local renewable electricity generators to do so,  

 that making these financial costs proportionate to the scale of a 
renewable electricity supplier’s operation would create significant 
opportunities for local companies and community groups to be 
providers of locally generated renewable electricity directly to local 
people, businesses and organisations, if they wished, and 

 that revenues received by such local companies or community 
groups that chose to become local renewable electricity providers 
could be used to help improve the local economy, local services and 
facilities and to reduce local greenhouse gas emissions; 

 Notes that the House of Commons Environmental Audit Committee, as a 
result of its 2021 Technological Innovations and Climate Change inquiry, 
recommended that a Right to Local Supply for local energy suppliers be 
established to address this 

 Accordingly resolves to support the Local Electricity Bill, currently 
supported by a cross-party group of 295 MPs and which, if made law, would 
establish a Right to Local Supply which would promote local renewable 
electricity supply by making the setup and running costs of selling 
renewable electricity to local customers proportionate to the size of the 
supply company; and 

 Further resolves to: 

 inform the local media of this decision, 

Page 28



 

 write to Grant Shapps MP, asking them to support the Bill, and 

 write to the organisers of the campaign for the Bill, Power for People, 
(at Camden Collective, 5-7 Buck Street, London NW1 8NJ or 
info@powerforpeople.org.uk) expressing its support. 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

 
 

Part I 
Item No:  
Main author: Jonah Anthony 
For Resolution 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 16 MARCH 2022  
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

INDEPENDENT PERSONS’ ALLOWANCE  

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report considers proposals to introduce new annual allowances for 
Independent Persons and members of the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) 
who fulfil important statutory functions for the Council. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That Council agrees to introduce the following Independent Persons’ Allowances 
from 2022/23 

1. An annual sum of £500 per annum for those appointed as Independent Persons 
by the Council. 

2. An annual sum of £500 per annum for members of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel during designated review years for the Member Allowance 
Scheme; and £200 per annum for intervening years 

3. Reasonable travel expenses will continue to be reimbursed in line with current 
Council policies. 

3 Explanation 

Independent Persons  

3.1 The role of an “independent person” was created by the Localism Act 2011. The Act 
requires all local authorities to adopt a code of conduct for their elected members 
and to appoint at least one independent person to assist the Council in dealing with 
complaints that the code of conduct may have been breached. Currently the Council 
can call upon three independent persons to assist in dealing with complaints of this 
manner. In practice, only one independent person has been required to assist the 
Council in the past few years. 

3.2 An independent person would be expected to advise and potentially attend any 
meeting of the Standards Committee or Sub Committee which is considering an 
allegation of a breach of the code of conduct. The Independent Person will be 
expected to provide a view on the conduct of borough and parish/town councillors 
from an external perspective, reflecting the expectations and views of the local 
community on ethical standards. The Independent Person fulfils this function in 
accordance with the council’s “Arrangements for dealing with complaints about the 
code of conduct for councillors” and statutory arrangements. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 10



- 2 - 

3.3 In addition to this, the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2001 (as amended) requires that a panel of at least 2 Independent 
Persons, is convened to advise the council in the event of the council’s Investigating 
and Disciplinary Committee recommending the dismissal of a Statutory Officer. 

3.4 The role of the Independent Person is voluntary and unsalaried. However, a small 
annual allowance is permitted under Section 28(8)(d) of the Localism Act 2011. This 
is in addition to reasonable expenses claimed for travel and subsistence when 
meetings have been attended. Currently the Council do not pay any allowance, and 
it is thought this has contributed to the difficultly in recruiting suitably qualified people 
to fulfil this important statutory role. It is proposed that an annual allowance is 
introduced before the Council advertises for and seek to recruit new Independent 
Persons. 

3.5 A review of councils in Hertfordshire showed a range of practices. North 
Hertfordshire District Council advertised for an Independent Person in 2020 with an 
allowance of £2205 per annum, whilst Stevenage has an allowance of £1,361 for 
their independent person. In both these cases the Independent Person is required 
to attend meetings of the Standards Committee. In contrast Hertsmere provide an 
allowance of £300 per annum. 

3.6 It is therefore proposed that Independent Persons receive an annual allowance of 
£500 in recognition of the statutory role they play and the work they undertake on 
behalf of the Council. 

Independent Remuneration Panel 

3.7 Local authorities are required by the Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) 
(England) Regulations 2003 to establish and maintain an independent remuneration 
panel to make recommendations on the level of basic and special responsibility 
allowances and associated matters that are paid to councillors. The Council is 
therefore required to recruit for and appoint suitably qualified people to sit on the 
Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP). Currently the Council’s Independent 
Remuneration Panel has five members. 

3.8 In order for the IRP to make recommendations to Council, it must assess the ‘value’ 
of the respective member roles within the wider and overall Council political 
structure, taking account of changes it considers appropriate and relevant, without 
any preconceived result or directed outcome. The IRP also considers benchmarking 
or specialist data as appropriate before it determines a scheme of Members’ 
Allowances.  

3.9 Similarly, to the Independent Persons, members of the IRP are voluntary and 
unsalaried. However, a small annual allowance is permitted under regulation 20(3) 
of the Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003.  
Previously the Council has struggled to recruit and retain members of the IRP. It is 
proposed that an annual allowance is introduced to recognise the work undertaken 
by IRP members in reviewing the Member Allowance Scheme and making 
recommendations to Council, especially in major review years. 

3.10 A review of councils in Hertfordshire showed a range of practices, with some 
councils covering only travel and subsistence costs, whilst others provide an 
allowance. Watford and Broxbourne provide an allowance of £200 per annum, whilst 

Page 32



- 3 - 

Dacorum and North Herts provide an allowance of £400 and £500 per annum 
respectively. However, we know a number of Councils are reviewing this at the 
moment give difficulties in retaining and attracting new IRP members.  

3.11 Given the difference in workloads between a review year and a non-review year, we 
propose to have two allowance rates to reflect this.  It is therefore proposed that IRP 
members should receive an annual allowance of £200 per annum, except in major 
review years when it is proposed the allowance should rise to £500. 

3.12 It is proposed that if agreed, these allowances should become payable in the new 
municipal year 2022/23. 

Implications 

4 Legal Implications 

4.1 Section 28 (7) of the Localism Act sets out the requirement for local authorities to 
appoint at least one independent person ‘whose views are to be sought, and taken 
into account, by the authority before it makes its decision on an allegation that it has 
decided to investigate, and in any other such circumstances it considers 
appropriate’. Therefore, it is a requirement of the Council to attract and retain 
independent persons to fulfil this function. 

4.2 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2001 
(as amended) requires that a panel of at least 2 Independent Persons, is convened 
to advise the council in the event of the council’s Investigating and Disciplinary 
Committee recommending the dismissal of a Statutory Officer. 

4.3 Each council must set members’ allowances in accordance with the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. Before an authority makes or amends a 
scheme, it has a legal duty to have regard to the recommendations made by its IRP. 
The IRP must form at least 3 members, none of whom is a councillor of the authority 
nor would be so disqualified from being a councillor. Therefore, it is a requirement 
of the Council to maintain an IRP to review and provide recommendations on the 
Members’ Allowance Scheme. 

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 Whilst the minimum requirement is for the council to have two independent person 
and three members of the IRP, it would be prudent to ensure there is resilience in 
the system. Therefore, we assume there will be at least three independent persons 
and five members of the IRP. This would mean the cost of introducing the 
allowances would be £2,500 in years without a Member Allowance Scheme review 
and £4,000 in review years. 

5.2 It is proposed that the allowances take effect from 2022/23. If the recommendations 
are agreed this would result in an expenditure of £2,500 in 2022/23 which will be 
borne out of current budget allocations. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 Failure to agree the recommendations may make it difficult for the council to retain 
the current independent persons and members of the IRP, and more importantly 
hinder its effort to attract and recruit new independent persons and IRP Members. 

Page 33



- 4 - 

This will impede the council’s ability to meet obligations set out in the Localism Act, 
The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2001 
(as amended) and the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local 
Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. 

7 Procurement Implication(s) 

7.1 None 

8 Climate Change Implication(s) 

8.1 None 

9 Human Resources Implication(s) 

9.1 None 

10 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

10.1 None 

11 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

11.1 None 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority “A well-run 
council which puts our customers first”, and specifically to promoting equality and 
fairness and supporting our councillors so that they may better work for, and 
represent, local communities. 

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) was not completed because this report does 
not propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development of new 
service-related policies. 

 
 
Ka Ng 
Chief Executive 
March 2022 
 
 

Page 34


	Agenda
	7 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS
	8a Procurement Boards
	8a - Contract Procedure Rules (Procurement) - February 2022 Draft

	9 NOTICES OF MOTIONS
	10 INDEPENDENT PERSONS' ALLOWANCE

